

# SleepWalking with Event System Using the SAM E54 AN

## Introduction

The SAM E54 is a 32-bit ARM<sup>®</sup> Cortex<sup>®</sup>-M4F based Flash microcontroller that provides features to reduce power consumption through different sleep modes, such as Idle, Standby, Hibernate, and Off. Additionally, the SAM E54 provides an advanced Low-Power Operation mode known as SleepWalking. SleepWalking enables the SAM E54 microcontrollers to wake up peripherals temporarily and asynchronously without waking up the CPU.

SleepWalking is based on event propagation managed by the Event System. It allows peripherals to work together without CPU intervention to solve complex tasks using minimal gates and the lowest possible power consumption.

To illustrate the benefits of SleepWalking using the Event System, a demonstrative application is provided along with this document. This application uses an ADC with a Window Monitoring feature in Standby mode for the following use cases:

- Standby mode with Interrupts (IRQ)
- Standby mode with Event System (SleepWalking)

This document also provides comparison on power consumption between these two use cases.

This demo application is developed using the MPLAB<sup>®</sup> X IDE on the MPLAB Harmony 3 Software Framework.

# **Table of Contents**

1. SAM E54 Low-Power Features Overview	3
1.1. Event System (EVSYS)	3
1.2. SleepWalking	4
1.3. Power Manager (PM)	5
2. Low-Power Application Overview	6
2.1. ACTIVE Mode	7
2.2. STDBY_IRQ Mode	8
2.3. STDBY_EVSYS Mode	9
3. Software and Hardware Requirements	11
3.1. Hardware Requirements	11
3.2. Software Requirements	13
3.3. Example Configuration	15
3.4. Running the Demo Application and Configuring the Environment	21
4. Results and Interpretation	26
4.1. Power Consumption	26
5. Conclusion	30
6. References	31
The Microchip Website	32
Product Change Notification Service	32
Customer Support	
Microchip Devices Code Protection Feature	32
Legal Notice	32
Trademarks	33
Quality Management System	33
Worldwide Sales and Service	24

## 1. SAM E54 Low-Power Features Overview

## 1.1 Event System (EVSYS)

The EVSYS is part of the SAM E54 architecture, which allows autonomous, low-latency, and configurable communication between peripherals.

Several peripherals can be configured to generate and respond to signals known as events. The exact condition to generate an event, or the action taken upon receiving an event is specific to each peripheral.

Peripherals that respond to events are called event users, and peripherals that generate events are called event generators. A peripheral can receive events from multiple generators, and generate events for multiple users. Communication is made without CPU intervention and without consuming system bus or RAM. This reduces the load of the CPU and other system resources, compared to a traditional interrupt-based system.

The following figures compare an application without an Event System to an application with an Event System. In both the applications, Timer Counter 0 triggers the ADC conversion after a periodic interval of 'x' milliseconds and Timer Counter 1 triggers the DAC after 'x' milliseconds, and AC triggers the PWM.

Application without EVSYS shows that for a typical application the CPU is quickly overloaded, which increases power consumption. Whereas in Application with EVSYS, the Event System allows all the peripherals to interact without requiring CPU intervention, until a relevant event occurs.



#### Figure 1-1. Application without EVSYS



### Figure 1-2. Application with EVSYS

### 1.2 SleepWalking

SleepWalking is the capability of a device to temporarily and asynchronously wake up clocks for a peripheral to perform a task without waking up the CPU from Standby mode. SleepWalking allows the CPU to sleep until a relevant interrupt occurs. To perform SleepWalking, the Event System is required to interconnect peripherals. The Event System is used to connect an event generator peripheral to an event user peripheral. When CPU is in Standby mode, the event user peripheral can request its clock using an on-demand feature. Upon receiving an event generator peripheral trigger, it will perform its task autonomously as shown in the following figure:





In the figure above, the peripheral requests its clock and runs without waking up the system clock. Once the peripheral is met with a valid condition during its second clock request, a wake-up request is sent to the CPU, which wakes up the CPU from Standby Sleep mode, and activates all clocks of the device (system and peripheral clocks).

SleepWalking is accomplished by the peripheral using the Event System to interconnect the peripherals in Standby mode without CPU intervention. The CPU will not wake up and the SRAM retention will still active until the appropriate condition or interrupt occurs.

### 1.3 **Power Manager (PM)**

The PM controls the sleep modes of the device and the power domain gating of the device.

#### Figure 1-4. Power Manager Block Diagram



PM controls the following:

- Sleep modes: Idle, Standby, Hibernate, Backup and Off
- SleepWalking available in Standby mode
- I/O lines retention in Backup mode
- SRAM and Backup RAM Retention
- Fast Wake-Up for NVM and Main Regulator

## 2. Low-Power Application Overview

This application is accompanied by a Low-Power Application example. The goal of this application is to compare two different low-power implementations in terms of power consumption to show the benefits of the SleepWalking feature. Alternatively the following modes run in the application:

- Standby mode with Interrupts (STDBY\_IRQ\_MODE)
- Standby mode with Event System also known as SleepWalking (STDBY\_EVSYS\_MODE)
- Active mode (ACTIVE\_MODE)

On power up, the application is in STDBY\_IRQ\_MODE. It is possible to switch from STDBY\_IRQ\_MODE to STDBY\_EVSYS\_MODE by pressing the switch button (SW0) embedded on the SAM E54 Xplained Pro board. The application wakes up from Sleep mode and enters into ACTIVE\_MODE when the embedded light sensor on the I/O1 Xplained Pro extension kit is covered.

To implement the above functionality, the application uses the ADC peripheral in Window Monitoring mode.

The flowcharts below illustrate the additional information on the application and its different modes:



### 2.1 ACTIVE Mode

The application enters Active mode when an ADC Window Monitoring interrupt occurs. The application will be in the Active mode until the user presses the SW0 button to go in one of the two sleep modes:

#### Figure 2-2. Active Mode Flowchart



**Note:** The RTC and ADC peripherals are separately initialized in IRQ mode. The default initialization is using the RTC and ADC to generate events in STDBY\_MODE\_EVSYS. The customized initialization is used in STDBY\_MODE\_IRQ.

### 2.2 STDBY\_IRQ Mode

After reset the application enters STDBY\_IRQ mode. In this mode, the CPU is woken up every 10 milliseconds using an RTC interrupt, to start the ADC conversion. The converted value is then compared with the ADC window condition. If the converted value matches the window condition, an ADC window match interrupt occurs, and the CPU enters into Active mode, printing a message on the serial terminal. If the converted ADC value does not match the ADC window condition, the CPU goes back to sleep mode until the next RTC interrupt occurs. While the CPU is in Sleep mode, it is possible to switch to the other Sleep mode (STDBY\_MODE\_EVSYS) by pressing the SW0 button.



### 2.3 STDBY\_EVSYS Mode

In this mode, Standby is used with the Event System to achieve SleepWalking. An RTC event occurs every 10 milliseconds that is transmitted from the RTC to the ADC through the Event System to launch an ADC conversion. With this method the CPU remains asleep, until an ADC Window Monitoring Interrupt, or an External Interrupt by

pressing SW0 button is detected. In the first case, the CPU wakes up and enters into Active mode. The CPU enters STDBY IRQ MODE when the SW0 button is pressed.





## 3. Software and Hardware Requirements

The Low-Power Application demonstration requires the following software and hardware:

### Software Requirements:

- MPLAB X IDE v5.25
- MPLAB Harmony Configurator 3
  - csp v3.5.0
  - dev\_packs v3.5.0
  - mhc v3.3.2
- Standalone Data Visualizer
- Tera Term or any other serial terminal

#### Hardware Requirements:

- 1 x Microchip SAM E54 Xplained Pro evaluation kit (board rev. 5)
- 1 x I/O1 Xplained Pro extension board
- 1 x Micro USB cable (type-A or Micro-B)

### 3.1 Hardware Requirements

#### 3.1.1 SAM E54 Xplained Pro Evaluation Kit

The Microchip SAM E54 Xplained Pro Evaluation Kit is a hardware platform used to evaluate the ATSAME54P20A microcontroller. Supported by the MPLAB X integrated development platform, the evaluation kit provides an easy access to the features of the ATSAME54P20A and explains how to integrate the device in a custom design.

The Xplained Pro MCU series evaluation kits include an on-board embedded debugger, which overcomes the need of external tools to program or debug the on-board microcontroller. The Xplained Pro extension kits offer additional peripherals to extend the features of the board and ease the development of custom designs. The following figure illustrates the features of the SAM E54 Xplained Pro board.



#### Figure 3-1. SAM E54 Xplained Pro Evaluation Kit

#### 3.1.2 I/O1 Xplained Pro Extension Board

The Microchip I/O1 Xplained Pro Extension Board is a generic extension board for the Xplained Pro platform. It connects to any Xplained Pro standard extension header on any Xplained Pro MCU board.

The extension board uses the following functions on the standard Xplained Pro extension header to enhance the features of the Xplained Pro MCU boards:

- SPI
  - MicroSD card connector
  - 2 GB microSD card included
- PWM
  - LED control
  - PWM > Low pass filter > ADC
- ADC
  - PWM > Low pass filter > ADC
  - Light sensor
- UART
  - Loopback interface through pin header
- TWI
  - AT30TSE758 temperature sensor with EEPROM



#### Figure 3-2. I/O1 Xplained Pro Extension Board

### 3.2 Software Requirements

3.2.1 MPLAB X Integrated Development Environment Figure 3-3. MPLAB X IDE



MPLAB<sup>®</sup> X Integrated Development Environment (IDE) is an expandable, highly configurable software program that incorporates powerful tools to help you discover, configure, develop, debug and qualify embedded designs for most of the Microchip's microcontrollers and digital signals controllers. MPLAB X IDE works seamlessly with the MPLAB development ecosystem of software and tools. Users can download MPLAB X IDE from the Microchip's web site: https://www.microchip.com/mplab/mplab-x-ide.

## 3.2.2 MPLAB Harmony

Figure 3-4. MPLAB Harmony



MPLAB<sup>®</sup> Harmony 3 is a fully integrated embedded software development framework that provides flexible and interoperable software modules that allow for dedicated resources to create applications for 32-bit PIC<sup>®</sup> and SAM devices, rather than dealing with device details, complex protocols and library integration challenges. It works seamlessly with MPLAB X IDE to enable a smooth transition and maximum code reuse between PIC32 MCUs, SAM MCUs, and MPUs.

It includes the MPLAB Harmony Configurator (MHC), an easy-to-use development tool with a Graphical User Interface (GUI) that simplifies device setup, library selection, configuration and application development. Refer to the following website for additional information on MPLAB Harmony: https://www.microchip.com/mplab/mplab-harmony.

### 3.2.3 Data Visualizer

#### Figure 3-5. Data Visualizer

🛃 Data Visualizer		-		×
DGI Control Panel				^ X
SAM E54 Xplained Pro ATML2748051800003201		~	Discon	nect p
ŝ	△ ADP Logging ✓ Autodetect protocols ○ Show Config s	earch path	✓ Reset	MCU
Interfaces:				
🗆 SPI 🛱 🗆 TWI 🛱 🗆	GPIO 🏠 🗹 Power 🏠			
<b>●</b> ◎ ● ◎ 0	@~ 0 <b>@</b> ~			
1	<b>@</b> 0			
2	<b>6</b> 0			
3	<b>@</b> 0			
Serial Port Control Panel				^ X
EDBG Virtual COM Port	(COM4) ~	C ✓ DTR [	onnect	
Baud rate Parity Stop bits		✓ Open	Terminal	tocole
9600 None ~ 1 bit ~	<b></b> 0	Autoc	retect pro	nocois

The Data Visualizer is a program to process and visualize data. The Data Visualizer can receive data from various sources such as the Embedded Debugger Data Gateway Interface (EDBG DGI) and COM ports. It is possible to track an application in run-time using a terminal graph or oscilloscope. It analyzes the power consumption of an application through correlation of code execution and power consumption, when used together with a supported probe or board. For additional information on Data Visualizer, refer to the Microchip web site: https://www.microchip.com/mplab/avr-support/data-visualizer.

## 3.3 Example Configuration

### 3.3.1 Hardware Setup

Figure 3-6. SAM E54 Xplained Pro Hardware Setup



### 3.3.2 Software Setup

The figure below illustrates the peripherals used for this demo application:



Figure 3-7. Harmony 3 (H3) Project Graph and Active Components

The following peripherals are listed under Active Components:

- ADC0 Configured to start conversion upon an RTC interrupt or event depending on which mode the
  application is in. Because both sleep modes are running simultaneously on the device, the ADC0 is
  configured for the Event System during initialization, but is reconfigured on-the-fly for the IRQ. The Window
  Monitoring feature is also enabled to generate an interrupt when the converted value is greater than a
  Window Low Threshold value.
- EIC Cconfigured to generate an interrupt when the user button is pressed.
- RTC Generates an event or an interrupt every 10 milliseconds depending on which mode the application is in. Since both sleep modes are running simultaneously on the device, the RTC is configured for the Event System during initialization but is reconfigured on-the-fly for the IRQ.
- SERCOM2 Configured to display application output information on a serial terminal.

#### 3.3.2.1 Pins Configuration

In the MHC user interface, users can access the Pin Configuration window: in the toolbar, select *Tools > Pin Configuration*.

Figure 3-6. Its Fill Configuration	Figure 3-8.	H3 Pin	Configuration
------------------------------------	-------------	--------	---------------

Pin Number	Pin ID	Custom Name	Function	Mode	Direction	Latch
72	PC18	LED0	GPIO ~	Digital	Out v	High
75	PC21	ETH_RESET	GPIO ~	Digital	Out ~	Low
100	P824	SERCOM2_PAD1	SERCOM2_PAD1 ~	Digital	High Impedance $\sim$	n/a
101	PB25	SERCOM2_PAD0	SERCOM2_PAD0 ~	Digital	High Impedance $\sim$	n/a
122	PB31	SW0	EIC_EXTINT15 ~	Digital	Out 🗸	n/a
125	P800	ADC0_AIN12	ADC0_AIN12/X30/Y30 ~	Analog	High Impedance $\lor$	n/a

The pins are configured as follows:

- · PC18 is assigned to the user LED as an output high
- PC21 is set to output low to reset the on-board Ethernet PHY KSZ8091 for power consumption considerations

Note: For additional information, refer to the SAM E54 Xplained Pro User's Guide (DS70005321).

- · PB24 is assigned to SERCOM2 input for data reception from the terminal
- · PB25 is assigned to SERCOM2 output for data transmission to the terminal
- PB31 is assigned to the user button
- PB00 is assigned to the ADC0 Channel 12 input for data conversion

#### 3.3.2.2 ADC0 Configuration

The ADC0 is used to convert incoming values from the embedded light sensor of the I/O1 Xplained Pro. It is possible to see the whole configuration of the ADC0 in the Configuration Options window by clicking on the peripheral in the Project Graph View in the MHC 3 as shown in the following figure:

#### Figure 3-9. H3 ADC0 Configuration

⊡-ADC0	
Select Prescaler	Peripheral clock divided by 2 $\sim$
Select Sample Length (cycles)	1 🗢
**** Conversion Time is 26.0	uS ****
Select Reference	VDDANA 🗸
🛱 Select Conversion Trigger	HW Event Trigger 🖂
-Flush Event Input Disable	ed 🗠
Start Event Input Enable	d on Rising Edge 🛛 🗠
- Enable DMA Sequencing	
Channel Configuration	
Select Positive Input AD	C AIN12 Pin 🛛 🗸
Select Negative Input Int	ernal Ground 🖂
🖨 Result Configuration	
Select Result Resolution	12-bit result
Left Aligned Result	
Enable Result Ready Interru	upt
Enable Result Ready Event	Out 🗸
🖻 Window Mode Configuration	
Select Window Monitor Moc	RESULT > WINLT ~
	4,000 🗬
Window Lower Threshold	3,000 🗢
Enable Window Monitor Int	errupt
Enable Window Monitor Eve	ent Out
🖻 Sleep Mode Configuration	
Run During Standby	
🛄 On Demand Control 🛛 🗸	

To have both modes running simultaneously on the same application, ADC0 is initialized by modifying its registers on-the-fly at each mode start. The ADC Start Conversion in the Event Input is then disabled while running in Standby with IRQ, and is enabled when running in Standby with the Event System.

#### 3.3.2.3 RTC Configuration

The Real-Time Controller is configured to generate an event every 10 milliseconds. The following figure shows the peripheral configuration through the Configuration Options view:



To have both sleep modes running on the same application, the RTC is initialized by modifying its registers on-the-fly at each mode start. The interrupt on the RTC Compare '0' is enabled when running in Standby mode with the IRQ, and is disabled while running in Standby with the Event System.

#### 3.3.2.4 EIC Configuration

To enable interrupts on the embedded user button, the EIC is configured in the MHC 3 as follows:



#### 3.3.2.5 SERCOM2 Configuration

To allow SERCOM2 display information on a terminal, the peripheral is set as SERCOM USART. The STDIO library is plugged to the SERCOM2 USART to redirect output of standard IO stream functions to the serial terminal. The peripheral configuration is available in the Configuration Options view, which is shown in the following figure:

#### Figure 3-12. H3 SERCOM2 Configuration

⊡-SERCOM2

Select SERCOM Operation	Mode USART with internal Clock $$
Enable Interrupts ?	
Receive Enable	$\checkmark$
- Transmit Enable	$\checkmark$
- Enable Run in Standby	
Receive Pinout	SERCOM PAD[1] is used for data reception $\sim$
Transmit Pinout	SERCOM PAD[0] is used for data transmission $~\sim~$
- Parity Mode	No Parity $\sim$
- Character Size	8 Bits 🖂
Stop Bit Mode	One Stop Bit $\sim$
Baud Rate in Hz	115,200 🗢

#### 3.3.2.6 Clock Configuration

Harmony 3 provides a graphical interface to configure the clocks. The following figure illustrates the clock configuration:



### Figure 3-13. Harmony 3 Clock Configuration Overview

- The XOSC1 is configured to run at 12 MHz and feeds the Generic Clock Generator 0 (GCLK0) and Generic Clock Generator 2 (GCLK2). GCLK0 runs at 12 MHz and GCLK2 runs at 1 MHz.
- The OSCULP32K is configured to provide a 32 kHz source clock to the Generic Clock Generator 1 (GCLK1)
- The Generic Clock Controller (GCLK) is used to route oscillators to the peripherals. GCLK0 provides a 12 MHz source clock to the CPU. The GCLK1 is used to clock the Event System and SERCOM2 slow clocks. The GCLK2 clocks the ADC0, EIC, and the SERCOM2 main clock.

**Note:** Users can set the source clock for peripherals by clicking on the *Peripheral Clock Configuration* block highlighted in the figure above.

#### 3.3.2.7 Event System (EVSYS) Configuration

The EVSYS can be configured using Harmony 3. In this application, event generation on compare is enabled for the RTC. The ADC0 is configured to start the conversion on incoming events from the RTC. It is possible to see the EVSYS configuration in the *Configuration Options* window after clicking on the EVSYS box in the *Project Graph* as shown in the following figure:

- F4 🗆

		I	Event Syst	tem Manager	
	Channel Co	nfiguration		Channel 0 Settings	
Channel Number Channel 0	Event Generator RTC_CMP_0 ~	Event User Status Ready O O	Remove Channel Remove	Path Selection: ASYNCHRONOUS	
	Add Cha	nnel guration			
USE ADC0 STA	R Channel I ART v Channel O	Number Re	move User Remove		
	Add Us	er			

#### Figure 3-14. H3 Event 0 Easy View

EVENTO Easy View

## 3.4 Running the Demo Application and Configuring the Environment

This section of the document describes the following steps:

- · Loading, Compiling and Running the application
- Configuring the Serial Terminal
- Configuring the Data Visualizer

#### 3.4.1 Loading, Compiling and Running the Application

Ensure that MPLAB X IDE and MPLAB Harmony 3 are installed before loading and compiling the application.

To load and compile the application project, follow these steps:

- 1. Launch MPLAB X IDE.
- To open the project file, in the MPLAB X IDE toolbar select *File > Open Project*. Figure 3-15. MPLAB X IDE - Open Project Folder



3. In the Open Project window, browse and select the application project file sam\_e54\_xpro.X.

🛿 Open Project	t			$\times$
Recent Items	Look in:	irmware		
Desktop		Open Required Pro	jects:	
Documents				
This PC				
Network	File name: Files of type:	C:\Users\M50534\HarmonyProjects\SleepWalking_With_EVSYS_WM\firmwa	are	Open Project Cancel

Figure 3-16. MPLAB X IDE - Open Project File

4. Click **Open Project**, the project window will display the project architecture as shown below. **Figure 3-17. MPLAB X IDE - Project Architecture** 

Services	Files	Projects ×	-
⊡ 🗐 sleep	walking_with	h_evsys_sam_e54	_xpro
ф- 💼 н	eader Files		
🕂 🕞 🗄	nportant File	es	
🖶 💼 Li	nker Files		
🕀 📠 S	ource Files		
🗄 / 🔓 Li	braries		
Ė- 📠 L	oadables		

- 5. Select the connected board EDBG hardware tool, and then perform this action:
  - 5.1. To open project properties, from the MPLAB X IDE toolbar select *Production > Set Project Configuration*, and then click **Customize.**

Figure 3-18. MPLAB X IDE - Open Project Properties

Production Debug Team Tools Window Help

<u>م</u>	Build Project (sleepwalking_with_evsys_sam_e54_xpro) Clean and Build Project (sleepwalking_with_evsys_sam_e54_xpro) Batch Build Project (sleepwalking_with_evsys_sam_e54_xpro)	F11 Shift+F11		
	Set Project Configuration	>	•	sam_e54_xpro
	Set Main Project Set Configuration Bits	>		Customize
▶ ▶	Check File Validate File	Alt+F9 Alt+Shift+F9		
	Repeat Build/Run Stop Build/Run	Ctrl+F11		

- 5.2. In the Project Properties window, under Categories select Conf: (sam\_e54\_xpro)
- 5.3. Under Configuration section, select Hardware Tool, and Compiler Toolchain as shown below.

ategories:	Configuration			
⊘ General	Family:			Device:
File Indusion/Exclusion     Conft [sam_e54_xpro]	All Families		~	ATSAME54P20A V
····· O EDBG	Supported Debug Header:			Supported Plugin Board:
···· O Loading ···· O Libraries	None			None 🗸
Building     VG32 (Clabel Options)	Packs:	Hardware Tool:	Compi	ler Toolchain:
e wr22 coodi Options)	Packs	PICkit2	^ O	ompiler Toolchains
0 xc32 acc	CMSIS	→ O Power Debugger	E-AF	RM
0 xc32-gcc	5.0.1			C32 [Download Latest]
0 xc32/d	SAME54 DEP	E-00 SAM E54 Xolained Pro (EDBG)		OXC32 (v2.30) [C:\Program Files (x86) Microd
0 xc32-ar	2.0.12	SN: ATML2748051800003201		• XC32 (v2.15) [C:\Program Files (x86) Wicrod
Code Coverage	3.0.27	O mEDBG		
Code Coverage		Starter Kits (PKOB)		
		Egacy Starter Kits		
		MCHV		
		SKDE SS ADDIO		
		SKDE PIC 18FJ		
		SKDE PIC24F 1		
		SKDE PIC32	v <	>
	*Tip: double click op serial pu	mber (SN) to use a friendly name (EN) instead		
Manage Configurations	rip. double click off serial fic	ander (Siv) to use a menory name (inv) instead.		

- 5.4. Click **Apply**, and then click **OK**.
- 6. To build the application, select *Production*, and then click  $\square$  (Build Project icon).
- 7. Flash the application software on the hardware by clicking  $\triangleright$ .

#### 3.4.2 Configuring Tera Term

To configure the serial terminal, follow these steps:

- 1. Open Tera Term or any equivalent tool.
- 2. In the Tera Term: New Connection window, select the Serial Port number allocated to the connected SAM E54 Xplained Pro board, and then click **OK**.

Figure 3-20. Tera Term - New Connection Window

	Host: myhost.exar	nole.com	
	<ul> <li>✓ History</li> <li>Service: ○ Telnet</li> <li>● SSH</li> <li>O Other</li> </ul>	TCP port#: 22 SSH version: SSH2 Protocol: UNSPEC	~
● Serial	Port: COM4: EDB OK Cancel	G Virtual COM Port (COM Help	4) ~

3. Configure the Tera Term Serial port interface as shown in the image below, and then click **OK**.

Figure 3-2	1. Tera Term - Serial Port Setup				
	Tera Term: Serial port setup				$\times$
	Port:	COM4	~		
	Speed:	115200	~	OK	
	Data:	8 bit	~	Cancel	
	Parity:	none	~		1
	Stop bits:	1 bit	~	Help	
	Flow control:	none	~		
	Transmit delay	char 0	mse	c/line	

4. Reset the board by pressing the reset button. The application will start by displaying the following message on the serial terminal.

Figure 3-22. Tera Term - Application Message Displayed

<u>vi</u>	COM4	- Tera Te	rm VT				_		$\times$
File	Edit	Setup	Control	Window	Help				
									^
		\$1	leepWall	king wit	th Event Sy	stem			
Stan Pres	Standby mode with IRQ. Press SWO button to switch mode.								

### 3.4.3 Configuring the Data Visualizer

The following process is used to configure the Data Visualizer for power consumption measurement:

- 1. Open the standalone Data Visualizer tool.
- 2. In the Data Visualizer window, select SAM E54 Xplained Pro, and then click Connect.

#### Figure 3-23. Data Visualizer - DGI Control Panel

🌽 D	Data Visualizer	-	- 🗆	×
Configurat	DGI Control Panel SAM E54 Xplained Pro ATML2748051800003201		Conn     Star	ect
ion	Interfaces:	ADP Logging 🗹 Autodetect protocols 🗌 Show Config search pa	ath 🔽 Reset	MCU
	Serial Port Control Panel          EDBG Virtual COM Port (COM4)         Baud rate       Parity         Stop bits         9600       None v         1 bit v       ©		Connect TR RTS pen Terminal utodetect pro	n x

3. Once the protocols are displayed, select the protocol **Power** and then click **Start**. **Figure 3-24. Data Visualizer - Power Protocol** 

Data Visualizer	- 🗆 X
DGI Control Panel SAM E54 Xplained Pro ATM42748051800003201	Disconnect Start
Interfaces:         SPI         TWI         Image: SPI         Ima	ADP Logging 🗹 Autodetect protocols 🗌 Show Config search path 📝 Reset MCU
Serial Port Control Panel         EDBG Virtual COM Port (COM4)         Baud rate       Parity       Stop bits         9600       None         1 bit         ©	Connect

4. The Data Visualizer will display the power consumption details in the **Power Analysis** window. **Figure 3-25. Data Visualizer - Power Analysis** 



## 4. Results and Interpretation

### 4.1 **Power Consumption**

When the application is running, the dynamic current consumption of the application can be measured with the Data Visualizer standalone tool.

**Note:** The average value will be considered when comparing power consumption between different sleep modes, because the instant current is measured at any time and does not illustrate stable power consumption values.

#### 4.1.1 Standby Mode with IRQ

When the application starts, the device will run on Standby with IRQ mode. The following figure shows the power consumption of the device when the CPU is woken up every 10 milliseconds by an RTC Compare '0' interrupt to start an ADC conversion:





The Data Visualizer displays a 42.1 µA average for power consumption while running in STDBY\_IRQ\_MODE. By comparing this value with the minimal possible power consumption documented in the product data sheet, it is noted that the value during Sleep mode is higher than expected as shown in the table below:

#### Figure 4-2. Power Consumption Expectations

Fast wake-up disabled	LDO	1.8V	53	1068
(PM.STDBYCFG.FASTWKUP = 0x0), RTC running on		3.3V	53	1067
XOSC32K Full System RAM	BUCK	1.8V	32	702
retained (PM.STDBYCFG.RAMCFG = 0x0). 8 KB backup RAM retained		3.3V	22	537

This difference in power consumption values is due to the following reasons:

- Clock configuration is different. All GCLK are OFF during Standby mode as provided in the data sheet example configuration, while some peripherals request the GCLK 2 that is connected to the XOSC1 which runs at 1 MHz in the low-power application.
- Only the RTC is running during the measurement of the values as provided in the data sheet; however, the peripherals, such as RTC, ADC and EIC run in Standby mode in this application.
- In the application under consideration, the CPU is woken up every 10 milliseconds, which increases power consumption.

#### 4.1.2 SleepWalking (Standby with Event System)

Using the SW0 push button, it is possible to change the application mode from Standby with IRQ to SleepWalking. In this mode the CPU is woken up only when an ADC window monitoring interrupt occurs. The following figure shows the power consumption of the device when running in Standby with the Event System:



Figure 4-3. Power Consumption in Standby with Event System

Because several peripherals are running during SleepWalking operations, such as RTC, ADC, Event System, and EIC, the power consumption is higher than it is documented in the product data sheet.

However, by comparing the power consumption of the device while running in Standby with IRQ, with the power consumption of the device while running in Standby with the Event System, a gap can be observed. The first mode (STDBY\_IRQ\_MODE) consumes over 42.1 µA although the second mode (Sleepwalking) consumes 34.5 µA. This is because in STDBY\_IRQ\_MODE, the CPU is woken up every 10 milliseconds and is clocked by a 12 MHz clock source while in the STDBY\_EVSYS\_MODE, the CPU is in Sleep mode until an interrupt occurs.



**Important:** The product data sheet is developed on the specified version of the hardware, hence power consumption values may differ when evaluated on a different hardware. Power consumption values will always be higher in STDBY IRQ MODE than in STDBY EVSYS MODE across different boards.

#### 4.1.3 Battery Life Comparison

To go deeper in the analysis and understand the impact in terms of power consumption, a better comparison can be made by observing the application as if it was running on a battery power supply.

For this example, a standard battery with configurations as shown in the following table, can be considered to calculate the battery life of the application for each Sleep mode.

Table 4-1. Battery Characteristics

Nominal Voltage	Capacitance	Battery type
3 V	620 mAh	Lithium – Manganese – Dioxide

The battery life is characterized by following formula:

 $T_{BL}(h) = \frac{Battery \ Capacitance \ (Ah)}{PowerConsumption(A)}$ 

#### Standby Mode with IRQ:

For a capacitance of 620 mAh and a 42.1 µA power consumption, the battery life TBL will be as follows:

$$T_{BL} = \frac{620 x \, 10^{-3}}{42.1 x \, 10^{-6}} = 14,276h$$

By converting the computed value, it leads to a battery lifetime over 613 days and 14 hours.

#### Standby Mode with Event System:

For a capacitance of 620 mAh and a 34.5 µA power consumption, the battery life TBL will be as follows:

$$T_{BL} = \frac{620 \ x \ 10^{-3}}{34.5 \ x \ 10^{-6}} = 17,971 \ h$$

By converting the computed value, it leads to a battery lifetime over 748 days and 19 hours.

To conclude, if the device was running with SleepWalking feature, it would last 135 days more than if it was running on Standby mode with IRQ.

## 5. Conclusion

This document provided an overview on the benefits of SleepWalking (Standby with Event System) over using Standby with IRQ. It also showed that an application based on events instead of interrupts allows the reduction of power consumption and keeps the CPU asleep for longer time. The more interrupts in Standby mode the more the CPU will be woken up, which will increase the power consumption. In SleepWalking the CPU will not wake up on events therefore reducing power consumption.

However, if there are less frequent interrupts occurring, the difference between Standby mode with IRQ and SleepWalking operations is less in terms of power consumption.

## 6. References

For additional information, refer to the following documents which are available for download from the Microchip website:

- SAM D5x/E5x Family Data Sheet: http://ww1.microchip.com/downloads/en/DeviceDoc/60001507E.pdf
- SAM E54 Xplained Pro User's Guide: http://ww1.microchip.com/downloads/en/DeviceDoc/70005321A.pdf
- What is SleepWalking? How it Helps to Reduce Power Consumption: http://ww1.microchip.com/downloads/en/DeviceDoc/90003183A.pdf

## The Microchip Website

Microchip provides online support via our website at http://www.microchip.com/. This website is used to make files and information easily available to customers. Some of the content available includes:

- Product Support Data sheets and errata, application notes and sample programs, design resources, user's
  guides and hardware support documents, latest software releases and archived software
- General Technical Support Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs), technical support requests, online discussion groups, Microchip design partner program member listing
- **Business of Microchip** Product selector and ordering guides, latest Microchip press releases, listing of seminars and events, listings of Microchip sales offices, distributors and factory representatives

## **Product Change Notification Service**

Microchip's product change notification service helps keep customers current on Microchip products. Subscribers will receive email notification whenever there are changes, updates, revisions or errata related to a specified product family or development tool of interest.

To register, go to http://www.microchip.com/pcn and follow the registration instructions.

## **Customer Support**

Users of Microchip products can receive assistance through several channels:

- Distributor or Representative
- Local Sales Office
- Embedded Solutions Engineer (ESE)
- Technical Support

Customers should contact their distributor, representative or ESE for support. Local sales offices are also available to help customers. A listing of sales offices and locations is included in this document.

Technical support is available through the website at: http://www.microchip.com/support

## **Microchip Devices Code Protection Feature**

Note the following details of the code protection feature on Microchip devices:

- · Microchip products meet the specification contained in their particular Microchip Data Sheet.
- Microchip believes that its family of products is one of the most secure families of its kind on the market today, when used in the intended manner and under normal conditions.
- There are dishonest and possibly illegal methods used to breach the code protection feature. All of these methods, to our knowledge, require using the Microchip products in a manner outside the operating specifications contained in Microchip's Data Sheets. Most likely, the person doing so is engaged in theft of intellectual property.
- · Microchip is willing to work with the customer who is concerned about the integrity of their code.
- Neither Microchip nor any other semiconductor manufacturer can guarantee the security of their code. Code protection does not mean that we are guaranteeing the product as "unbreakable."

Code protection is constantly evolving. We at Microchip are committed to continuously improving the code protection features of our products. Attempts to break Microchip's code protection feature may be a violation of the Digital Millennium Copyright Act. If such acts allow unauthorized access to your software or other copyrighted work, you may have a right to sue for relief under that Act.

## Legal Notice

Information contained in this publication regarding device applications and the like is provided only for your convenience and may be superseded by updates. It is your responsibility to ensure that your application meets with

your specifications. MICROCHIP MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WRITTEN OR ORAL, STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, RELATED TO THE INFORMATION, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ITS CONDITION, QUALITY, PERFORMANCE, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR PURPOSE. Microchip disclaims all liability arising from this information and its use. Use of Microchip devices in life support and/or safety applications is entirely at the buyer's risk, and the buyer agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless Microchip from any and all damages, claims, suits, or expenses resulting from such use. No licenses are conveyed, implicitly or otherwise, under any Microchip intellectual property rights unless otherwise stated.

## Trademarks

The Microchip name and logo, the Microchip logo, Adaptec, AnyRate, AVR, AVR logo, AVR Freaks, BesTime, BitCloud, chipKIT, chipKIT logo, CryptoMemory, CryptoRF, dsPIC, FlashFlex, flexPWR, HELDO, IGLOO, JukeBlox, KeeLoq, Kleer, LANCheck, LinkMD, maXStylus, maXTouch, MediaLB, megaAVR, Microsemi, Microsemi logo, MOST, MOST logo, MPLAB, OptoLyzer, PackeTime, PIC, picoPower, PICSTART, PIC32 logo, PolarFire, Prochip Designer, QTouch, SAM-BA, SenGenuity, SpyNIC, SST, SST Logo, SuperFlash, Symmetricom, SyncServer, Tachyon, TempTrackr, TimeSource, tinyAVR, UNI/O, Vectron, and XMEGA are registered trademarks of Microchip Technology Incorporated in the U.S.A. and other countries.

APT, ClockWorks, The Embedded Control Solutions Company, EtherSynch, FlashTec, Hyper Speed Control, HyperLight Load, IntelliMOS, Libero, motorBench, mTouch, Powermite 3, Precision Edge, ProASIC, ProASIC Plus, ProASIC Plus logo, Quiet-Wire, SmartFusion, SyncWorld, Temux, TimeCesium, TimeHub, TimePictra, TimeProvider, Vite, WinPath, and ZL are registered trademarks of Microchip Technology Incorporated in the U.S.A.

Adjacent Key Suppression, AKS, Analog-for-the-Digital Age, Any Capacitor, AnyIn, AnyOut, BlueSky, BodyCom, CodeGuard, CryptoAuthentication, CryptoAutomotive, CryptoCompanion, CryptoController, dsPICDEM, dsPICDEM.net, Dynamic Average Matching, DAM, ECAN, EtherGREEN, In-Circuit Serial Programming, ICSP, INICnet, Inter-Chip Connectivity, JitterBlocker, KleerNet, KleerNet logo, memBrain, Mindi, MiWi, MPASM, MPF, MPLAB Certified logo, MPLIB, MPLINK, MultiTRAK, NetDetach, Omniscient Code Generation, PICDEM, PICDEM.net, PICkit, PICtail, PowerSmart, PureSilicon, QMatrix, REAL ICE, Ripple Blocker, SAM-ICE, Serial Quad I/O, SMART-I.S., SQI, SuperSwitcher, SuperSwitcher II, Total Endurance, TSHARC, USBCheck, VariSense, ViewSpan, WiperLock, Wireless DNA, and ZENA are trademarks of Microchip Technology Incorporated in the U.S.A. and other countries.

SQTP is a service mark of Microchip Technology Incorporated in the U.S.A.

The Adaptec logo, Frequency on Demand, Silicon Storage Technology, and Symmcom are registered trademarks of Microchip Technology Inc. in other countries.

GestIC is a registered trademark of Microchip Technology Germany II GmbH & Co. KG, a subsidiary of Microchip Technology Inc., in other countries.

All other trademarks mentioned herein are property of their respective companies.

© 2019, Microchip Technology Incorporated, Printed in the U.S.A., All Rights Reserved.

ISBN: 978-1-5224-5459-5

## **Quality Management System**

For information regarding Microchip's Quality Management Systems, please visit http://www.microchip.com/quality.



# **Worldwide Sales and Service**

AMERICAS	ASIA/PACIFIC	ASIA/PACIFIC	EUROPE
Corporate Office	Australia - Sydney	India - Bangalore	Austria - Wels
2355 West Chandler Blvd.	Tel: 61-2-9868-6733	Tel: 91-80-3090-4444	Tel: 43-7242-2244-39
Chandler, AZ 85224-6199	China - Beijing	India - New Delhi	Fax: 43-7242-2244-393
Tel: 480-792-7200	Tel: 86-10-8569-7000	Tel: 91-11-4160-8631	Denmark - Copenhagen
Fax: 480-792-7277	China - Chengdu	India - Pune	Tel: 45-4450-2828
Technical Support:	Tel: 86-28-8665-5511	Tel: 91-20-4121-0141	Fax: 45-4485-2829
http://www.microchip.com/support	China - Chongqing	Japan - Osaka	Finland - Espoo
Web Address:	Tel: 86-23-8980-9588	Tel: 81-6-6152-7160	Tel: 358-9-4520-820
http://www.microchip.com	China - Dongguan	Japan - Tokyo	France - Paris
Atlanta	Tel: 86-769-8702-9880	Tel: 81-3-6880- 3770	Tel: 33-1-69-53-63-20
Duluth, GA	China - Guangzhou	Korea - Daegu	Fax: 33-1-69-30-90-79
Tel: 678-957-9614	Tel: 86-20-8755-8029	Tel: 82-53-744-4301	Germany - Garching
Fax: 678-957-1455	China - Hangzhou	Korea - Seoul	Tel: 49-8931-9700
Austin, TX	Tel: 86-571-8792-8115	Tel: 82-2-554-7200	Germany - Haan
Tel: 512-257-3370	China - Hong Kong SAR	Malaysia - Kuala Lumpur	Tel: 49-2129-3766400
Boston	Tel: 852-2943-5100	Tel: 60-3-7651-7906	Germany - Heilbronn
Westborough, MA	China - Nanjing	Malaysia - Penang	Tel: 49-7131-72400
Tel: 774-760-0087	Tel: 86-25-8473-2460	Tel: 60-4-227-8870	Germany - Karlsruhe
Fax: 774-760-0088	China - Qingdao	Philippines - Manila	Tel: 49-721-625370
Chicago	Tel: 86-532-8502-7355	Tel: 63-2-634-9065	Germany - Munich
Itasca. IL	China - Shanghai	Singapore	Tel: 49-89-627-144-0
Tel: 630-285-0071	Tel: 86-21-3326-8000	Tel: 65-6334-8870	Fax: 49-89-627-144-44
Fax: 630-285-0075	China - Shenvang	Taiwan - Hsin Chu	Germany - Rosenheim
Dallas	Tel: 86-24-2334-2829	Tel: 886-3-577-8366	Tel: 49-8031-354-560
Addison, TX	China - Shenzhen	Taiwan - Kaohsiung	Israel - Ra'anana
Tel: 972-818-7423	Tel: 86-755-8864-2200	Tel: 886-7-213-7830	Tel: 972-9-744-7705
Fax: 972-818-2924	China - Suzhou	Taiwan - Taipei	Italy - Milan
Detroit	Tel: 86-186-6233-1526	Tel: 886-2-2508-8600	Tel: 39-0331-742611
Novi. MI	China - Wuhan	Thailand - Bangkok	Fax: 39-0331-466781
Tel: 248-848-4000	Tel: 86-27-5980-5300	Tel: 66-2-694-1351	Italy - Padova
Houston, TX	China - Xian	Vietnam - Ho Chi Minh	Tel: 39-049-7625286
Tel: 281-894-5983	Tel: 86-29-8833-7252	Tel: 84-28-5448-2100	Netherlands - Drunen
Indianapolis	China - Xiamen		Tel: 31-416-690399
Noblesville. IN	Tel: 86-592-2388138		Fax: 31-416-690340
Tel: 317-773-8323	China - Zhuhai		Norway - Trondheim
Fax: 317-773-5453	Tel: 86-756-3210040		Tel: 47-72884388
Tel: 317-536-2380			Poland - Warsaw
Los Angeles			Tel: 48-22-3325737
Mission Vieio. CA			Romania - Bucharest
Tel: 949-462-9523			Tel: 40-21-407-87-50
Fax: 949-462-9608			Spain - Madrid
Tel: 951-273-7800			Tel: 34-91-708-08-90
Raleigh, NC			Fax: 34-91-708-08-91
Tel: 919-844-7510			Sweden - Gothenberg
New York, NY			Tel: 46-31-704-60-40
Tel: 631-435-6000			Sweden - Stockholm
San Jose. CA			Tel: 46-8-5090-4654
Tel: 408-735-9110			UK - Wokingham
Tel: 408-436-4270			Tel: 44-118-921-5800
Canada - Toronto			Fax: 44-118-921-5820
Tel: 905-695-1980			1 dx. ++ 110-92 1-0020
Fax: 905-695-2078			
1 u. 000-000-2010			